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THE KEYPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION
KEYPORT, NJ 07735

370 Broad Street, Keyport NJ 07735
Tel, 732-212-6160 ext. 1008
Fax 732-212-6125

Anthony Rapolia
Business Administrator/Board Secretary

December 1, 2023

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Keyport School District

County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The annual comprehensive financial report of the Borough of Keyport School District (the
“District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for
both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with the management of the Keyport Board of Education. To the best of
our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds of the district. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader
to gain an understanding of the district's financial activities have been included.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in five sections: introductory,
financial, basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and other
supplementary information. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the roster
of officials, consultants and advisors and the District's organizational chart. The financial
section includes the independent auditor’'s report and the management's discussion and
analysis. The basic financial statements included the district-wide financial statements, fund
financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. The required supplementary
information reports on budget comparisons for the general and special revenue funds. The
other supplementary information consists of various financial statements, statistical
information and single audit. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the provisions of the Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circuiar 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments”. Information related fo this single audit,
including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and findings and recommendations are included in the single audit
section of this report.



1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Keyport School District is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standard Board
(“GASB”") in codification section 2100. All funds of the District are included in this report. The
Keyport Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a high quality education as well as a full range of programs appropriate
to the pre-school program through grade twelve. These include regular education, programs
for gifted and talented students, as well as special education for handicapped students both
in district and out of district. The district consists of two schools. The elementary
encompasses the pre-school program through grade eight while the high school comprises
of grades nine through twelve.

Supervising district-wide goals are a District Superintendent, School Business Administrator,

Director of Curriculum, Director of Pupil Personnel and Director of Guidance. Each school

has a principal and the Central School has a vice-principal to oversee day-to-day operations.
The foliowing is a comparison of student enrcliments for the last five years.

Student Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enrollment Change
2022-2023 930.0 0.324%
2021-2022 927.0 -0.215%
2020-2021 929.0 -7.65%
2019-2020 1006.0 -2.99%
2018-2019 1037.0 -1.24%

The Board of Education is comprised of ten members. Nine members are elected to three-
year terms with three seats up for election each year. One member is appointed by the Union
Beach Board of Education as the Union Beach representative. This appointment is made on
an annual basis. Regular meetings of the Board of Education are held on one Wednesday
of each month. Depending on the needs of the Board of Education, there may be an additional
workshop action meeting during a particular month. During its meetings, the Board
determines policy, district goals and priorities and conducts the business of the Board of
Education. Board meetings are open to the public and begin at 6:30 p.m.

To maintain effective communication, the District makes extensive use of the district website
as well as many social media platforms. The District also uses the 911 Inform Instant Alert
System to update parents and community members of important activities and events.
Parents also receive considerable information disseminated by the main office in each
building. Information about the budget is posted on the Keyport Schools web site with easy
access from the front page of the web site under “User Friendly Budget”.

All curricula in the district have been aligned to the state mandated New Jersey Student
Learning Standards and each school follows the district-wide goals as established by the
Board of Education.



2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: Overall enroliment in the Keyport District has
decreased over the last five years. This trend appears to have stabilized and enroliment
increased slightly during the past year. Over the last six years, our sending district, Union
Beach, has significantly decreased the amount of students they are sending us. This has
had a major impact on the tuition revenue the district receives. Additionally, the amount of
state aid the district receives has been decreasing as well.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES: The district continued to undergo major initiatives in repairing and
rehabilitating buildings that are between 50 year and 100 years of age. A $16.8 million dollar
school referendum passed in November of 2019 to upgrade district facilities. These upgrades
included HVAC, a secure vestibule, ceilings, electric panels, LED lights, fire alarm systems,
ADA compliant ramp, asbestos abatement, water drainage, masonry and envelope repairs.
The district also installed a new track at the athletic complex and recently repaved areas of
Keyport High School.

District Goals
2022-2023 District Goals

1. To improve academic achievement in Mathematics for all learners and to improve
responsive teaching and classroom data driven decision making.

2. To improve academic achievement in English Language Arts for all learners and to
solidify a comprehensive, responsive literacy approach at all grade levels.

3. To establish a district wide infrastructure that supports and strengthens the social
emotional capacities of our students and improves school culture and climate in
Keyport Public Schools.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets
of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived: and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal
control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.



5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is {o ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund,
the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for
the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount
as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect
generally accepted principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds.
These funds are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7) DEBT ADMINISTRATION: As of June 30, 2023, the District had outstanding bond debt
in the amount of $14,750,000.

8) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by
state statute as detailed in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has
adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in pubiic
depositories (TD Bank, Hazlet Office) protected from loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public
funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in
accordance with the Act.

9) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft
insurance on property and contents and fidelity bonds.

10) OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The
accounting firm of Suplee, Clooney & Company, CPAs was selected by the Board of
Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also
was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996 and the
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic
financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included
in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single
audit section of this report. The Board and Business Office wish to express their gratitude to
the participating employees from Suplee, Clooney and Company for a thorough, efficient,
professional, and pleasant audit experience.



11) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would fike to express our appreciation to the members
of the Keyport School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens
and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support fo the
development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could
not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our Board Office
Staff.

Respectfully submttted P
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Board Secretary
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Borough of Keyport School District
County of Monmouth

Keyport, New Jersey 07735

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities and each major fund of the Borough of Keyport School District, County
of Monmouth, New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and
each major fund of the District as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department
of Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”) the audit requirements of State of
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid.” and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards and provisions are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, for the year ended June 30,
2023, the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96,
“Subscription Based information Technology Agreements”. Our opinions are not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audif of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, the Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards the
Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

10
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* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and
the schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) in Exhibits M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information schedules and data such as the combining statements and individual
fund financial statements, and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New
Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The
other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon.

11
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in connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 1, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or
onh compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.
CERTIFIED gUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ot w 4.

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

December 1, 2023

12
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED

This section of the Borough of Keyport School District's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year ended
on June 30, 2023. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and
the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic
Financial Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and Local Governments.
Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year is presented in
the MD&A. In fiscal year 2023 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 96- Subscription Based
Information Technology Systems.

Financial Highlights

+ At the district-wide financial statements, revenues from governmental activities accounted for
$24,223,4981.82 or 96.97 percent of total school district revenue. The other 3.03 percent of
revenue was generated by the business type activities.

s At year end the Board of Education was able to transfer $200,000.00 into maintenance reserve
bringing the total to $937,863.72 for future maintenance projects. The Board of Education also
transferred $250,000.00 into tuition reserve bringing the total to $500,000.00 to be used for
future tuition shortfalls. The capital reserve has a balance of $1,837,058.00 for future capital
projects.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“ACFR”) consists of three parts: Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required Supplementary
Information. The Basic Financial Statements inciude two kinds of statements that present different
views of the District, District~wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements.

s District-wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
District's overall financial status.

+ Fund Financial Statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the District-wide
statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds.

« Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

« Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities
the District operates like a business, which include the districts food services and extendicare
funds.

15



BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED
The notes to financial statements are also included, which are an integral part of the financial
statements. The information in the notes provides detailed data on the District’s financial operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the District's budget for the year. Tabie 1 reflects how the various parts of this annual
report are arranged and related o one another.

District-wide Financial Statements

The District-wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all
of the District's assets and liabilities. All current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-wide Financial Statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed.
Net position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the
District's financial health or position, Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are
an indicator of whether its financial position has improved or diminished. The causes of this change
may be a result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the
District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition,
required educational programs and other factors.

in the District-wide Financial Statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

s Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here including,
but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services, operation and
maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities. Property taxes
and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

+ Business-type activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis
to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees to help it
cover the costs of certain services it provided. The food service and Extendicare activities are
reported as business activities.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on
major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding
and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (i.e. long-term
debt) or to show that it is properly using certain restricted revenues (i.e. entitliement grants).

The District maintains two financial funds:

Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending
in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
District's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities {reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and Statement of Activities) and governmental funds statements is reconciled in the financial
statements.

Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide financial
statements. The District’s enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flow.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Table 1
on the next page reflects the District's net position as a whole. Table 2 reflects the changes in net
position from operating results.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Statement of Net Position

ASSETS
Current & Other Asseis
Capital Assels

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCE

Deferred loss from debt refunding
Related to pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Liabilities

Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Related to pensions
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION

Alarge portion of the District’s net position is its net investment in capital assets. Restricted net positions
include those items that are subject to external restrictions (e.g., for capital projects, unemployment
compensation insurance, capital, maintenance and tuition reserves and excess fund balance in the

UNAUDITED
TABLE 1
NET POSITION
Fy2022
FY2023 (AS RESTATED)
$9,789,453.62 $8,803,450.33
24,983,977.90 25,672,583.50
34,773,431.52 34,476,033.83
634,040.00 631,839.00
634,040.00 631,939.00
18,668,944.50 17,867,304.03
884,773.11 1,705,150.30
19,453,717.61 19,672,454.33
765,603.00 1,842,340.00
765,603.00 1,942,340.00

11,652,584.64
6,825,778.04
(3,290,211.77)

10,056,962.19
7,900,981.30
(4,364,764.99)

$15,188,150.91

$13,693178.50

general fund as well as student activities and scholarships in the special revenue fund).

Unrestricted net position is at a deficit due to the net pension liability.

Current and other assets remained relatively the same as the prior fiscal year while total liabilities
decreased. The decrease in liabilities was due to a reduction of bonds payable, net pension liabilities
and compensated absences. Investment in capital assets and restricted net position increased as result
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED

Changes in Net Position from Operating Results

TJABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fyz2022
FY2023 (AS RESTATED)

Revenues

Frogram Revenues

Charges for Services 631,360.18 360,170.22

Operating Grants & Contributions 4,.550,666.97 7,337,512.68

Genera!l Revenues
Property Taxes
Grants (includes Stale Aid)
& Entitlements
Other Revenues

Expenses:
instruction
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General & School Administration,
Central Services &
Administrative Technology
Maintenance
Transportation
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation
Business-Type
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Net Position July 1,
Net Position June 30,

11,580,963.00

5,922,725.04
2,295921.73

11,370,005.00

6,112,032.562
2,445,971.24

24,981,636.92

13,324,620.09
3,452,844 .56

1,904,124 .34
1,735,923.44
913,630.24
533,650.67
1,084,733.10
762,869.70

27,626,591.66

16,569,398.78
3,756,961.42

1,825,074.29
1,440,839.94
766,866.40
554,271.88
820,649.00
727 742.53

23,712,396.14

1,269,240.78
13,918 910.13

26,461,804.33

1,164,787.33
12,7564,122.80

15,188,150.91

13,918,910.13

Sources of Revenue

The District’s total revenue for the 2022-2023 school year was $24,980,995.92 as reflected in Table 3
on the following page. Property taxes accounted for 46 percent of the total revenue with the other 54
percent consisting of state and federal aid, grants, charges for services, and miscellaneous sources
including Union Beach tuition.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED
Sources of Revenue
TABLE 3
DISTRICT-WIDE REVENUES
FY2023 FYz2022

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $11.580,963.00 46.00% 11,370,005.00 41.00%
Federal & State Grants not Restricted 5,922,725.04 24.00% 11,199,150.42 41.00%
Miscellaneous Income 2,205,280.73 9.00% 2,450,534.33 9.00%
Charges for Services 574,477.10 2.00% 360,170.22 1.00%
Operating Grants and Contributions 4,607, 550.05 18.00% 2,246,731.69 8.00%
$24,680,995.92 99.00% $27,626,591.66 100.00%

Expenses for the Fiscal Year 2023 and 2022

The total expenditures for the 2022-2023 fiscal year for all programs and services were $23,712,396.17.
Table 4 below summarizes these program costs. The District's expenses are predominantly related to
instructing, providing services and transporting students, grades kindergarten through twelve, which
accounts for 71 percent of the total District costs. Administrative and business expenses account for
the costs of the Office of the Superintendent of Schools, the Business Office, and the Principal’'s Offices
in the school and administrative buildings. Maintenance and operations account for the costs of keeping
the school buildings and grounds safe, clean and in good operating condition, and includes all the utility
costs related to the school facilities. Other costs include interest on long-term debt, unallocated
depreciation expense and the costs of the business-type activities of the proprietary funds. Depreciation
expense on capital assets is included in expenses for the year and totals $1,167,982.10,

TABLE 4
DISTRICT-WIDE EXPENSES
FY2023 Fyz022
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $13,324,620.09 56.00% 16,569,398.78 63.00%
Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,452,844.56 15.00% 3,756,961.42 14.00%
General & School Adm., Central
Services & Adm. Technology 1,804,124.34 8.00% 1,825,074.29 7.00%
Maintenance 1,735,623.44 7.00% 1,440,839.94 5.00%
Transportation 913,630.24 4.00% 766,866.49 3.00%
interest on Long-Term Debt 533,650.67 2.00% 554,271.88 2.00%
Other 1,084,733.10 5.00% 820,649.00 3.00%
Business-Type 762,869.70 3.00% 727,742.53 3.00%
$23,712,396.14 100.00% $26,461,804.33 100.00%
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED

Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid
provided for specific programs) of six major District activities: instruction, student & instructional
services, administration and business, maintenance and operations, transportation, and other. The net
cost shows the financial burden placed on the District's taxpayers and the state by each of these
functions.
TABLE 4
DISTRICT-WIDE EXPENSES

FY2023 FY2022
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
fnstruction $13,324,620.09 56.00% 16,569,398.78 63.00%
Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,452,844.56 15.00% 3,756,961.42 14.00%
General & School Adm., Central
Services & Adm. Technology 1,004,124.34 8.00% 1,825,074.29 7.00%
Maintenance 1,735,923.44 7.00% 1,440,839.94 5.00%
Transportation 913,630.24 4.00% 766,866.49 3.00%
interest on Long-Term Debt 533,650.67 2.00% 554,271.88 2.00%
Other 1,084,733.10 5.00% 820,649.00 3.00%
Business-Type 762,869.70 3.00% 727,742.53 3.00%
$23,712,396.14 100.00% $26,461,804.33 100.00%

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development. This category also includes
health and guidance services.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated with
administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and equipment
in an effective operating condition.

Student transportation includes activities with the conveyance of special education students to and from
school, school activities and athletic events, as provided by state law.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation, interest on long term debt, the extendicare program and the
food service program.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting. The most significant
budgeted fund is the general fund. During the fiscal year there were differences between the original
budget and the final amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain line items. These
transfers were made between line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State guidelines.
Readers should refer to Section C of the financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted
amounts.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where
the modified budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by significant amounts.

Expenditures

The actual amounts expended in the governmental fund decreased while the enterprise expenditures
increased. Transportation costs increased greatly over the prior year as more routes were needed. The
Extendicare and food service programs saw an increase over last year as the pandemic ended.

Revenues

Excluding the change in the state pension, revenues overall saw a decrease from the prior year.
Federal grants increased such as ESSER Il and ESSER Il covid grants during 2022-2023. Charges for
services in the cafeteria and extendicare program increased due to more a-la carte lunches served and
more participation in the extendicare program over the prior year.

Capital Assets
During the fiscal year 2022-2023 the District saw an increase in capital acquisitions of equipment and
construction in progress as the District continued work on bond referendum projects in the schools.

Table 6 reflects the comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the
changes in capital assets is reflected in Note 3 to the financial statements.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

KEYPORT, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED
Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Percenta
FY2022 FY2022
FY 2023 {As Restated) FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2023 {As Restated) Change
Land & Construction
in Progress $53,182.00 $53,182.00 $53,182.00 $53,182.00 0.00%
Site Improvements 1,257,162.00 1,194,177.00 1,257,162.00 1,194,177.00 5.27%
Building and
Building
Improvements 22,842 ,067.90 22,655,895.00 22,842,067 .90 22,655,895.00 0.82%
Machinery and
Equipment 734,545.00 617,967.00  $97,021.00  $107,709.00 831,566.00 725,676.00 14.59%
Total Assets $24,886,956.90  $24,521,221.00 $97,021.00  $107,700.00  $24,983977.90  $24,628,830.00 1.44%

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2023 the District had $18,568,944.50 outstanding long-term liabilities, consisting of bonds
payable from construction, compensated absences, installment purchase contracts and net pension
liability. The District will continue to pay down its debt, as the obligations are due. Table 7 reflects the
comparison of outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years. More information about the District's long-
term liabilities is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements. There were decreases in bonds

payable, compensated absences and in the net pension liability.

Outstanding Long-term Liabilities

Table 7
Long-Term Debt, June 30

instaliment Purchase Contracts
Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable

Net Pension Expense Payable

FY2023 EY2022
110,881.62 65,621.31
327,327.88 341,754.34

14,750,000.00 15,550,000.00
3,380,735.00 2,724,141.00
$18,568,944 50 $18,681,516.65
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

UNAUDITED
The District's Future

The district’s financial position is directly related to enroliment and tuition revenue. Overall enroliment
in the Keyport District has decreased over the last five years. The drop was substantial in 2020-2021.
Additionally, our sending district, Union Beach, has significantly decreased the amount of students they
are sening us. This is having a major impact on the district as tuition revenue has dropped sharply.
Resident enroliment has also decreased recently. Enroliment is directly related to state funding. All of
these factors are having a major negative outlook on our upcoming budgets. The district will be forced
to make significant cuts if these factors continue.

Contacting the District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District's citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors
and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact Anthony Rapolla, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the
Keyport Borough Board of Education, 370 Broad Street, Keyport, New Jersey 07735 or email at
arapolla@kpsdschools.org.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2023
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statemnents include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventory
Restricted assets;
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Cther capital assets net of depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:

Related to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Payroll Deductions Payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds and installment purchase
contracts payable
Due beyond one year:
Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds and installment purchase
contracts payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES:

Related to pensions

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Special revenue fund

Capital projects fund

Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023

EXHiBiT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$5,438,969.31 $120.110.26 $5,658,079.57
921,297.63 25,400.16 946,697.79
8,753.54 8,753.54
3,274,922.72 3,274922.72
53,182.00 53,182.00
24,833,774.90 87,021.00 24,930,795.90
34,522,146.56 251,284.96 34,773.431.52
634,040.00 634,040.00
634,040.00 634,040.00
309,438.10 309,438.10
15,713.84 15,713.84
337,905.80 7,527.87 34543367
214,187.50 214,187.50
840,678.15 840,678.15
3,380,735.00 3,380,735.00
327,327.88 327,327.88
14,020,203.47 14,020,203.47
19,446,180.74 7.527.87 19,453,717.61
765,603.00 765,603.00
11,565,563.64 97,021.00 11,652,584.64
206,021.29 206,021.29
1,837,059.00 1,837,0568.00
4,782,697.75 4,782,697.75
(3,436,947 .86) 146,736.09 {(3,280,211.77)
$14,944,393.82 $243,757.08 $15,188,150.91

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, restricted reserves

Due from cther funds

Receivables from other governments

Totat assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payrolt Deductions Payable
interfund payables
Uneamed revenue

Total fabilities

Fund balances:

Restricted:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Tuitien reserve account
Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Excess surplus
Capital projects fund
FFCRA Semi- desginated for

subsequent years expenditures

Scholarships
Adult school emergency medical training
Student Activities

Assigned:
Designated for subseguent years expendilures
Encumbrances

Unassigned {deficif)

Total fund Halances

Totat fabilities and fund batances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL BISTRICT
BALA ET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30,2023
SPECIAL CAPITAL TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND ELUND FUND FLUNDS

3,656,34368 § 25313727 § 1.529.488.36 § 5,438,969.31
3274928272 327492272
215,971,286 1597136
480,050.38 441,247 .24 921,297.63
7,627,288.15 § 694,3684.51 § 1,629,4B8,30 3 2,851,161.02
23,397.04 3,771.06 27,168.10
15,713.84 15,713.84
21597136 215,971.36
337.505.80 337,905.80
39,110.88 567,648.22 596,759.10
1,837,059.00 1.837,059.00
937,863.72 937.863.72
500,000.00 500,000.00
1,075,000.00 1,075,000.00
1,938,415.87 1,938,415,87
4,529,488.36 1,529.488.36
2,598.27 2,598.27
5,621.66 5,521.66
89,568.87 89.568.87
110,930.78 110,930.76
475.117.73 475,117.73
67,6885.66 67,889.66
754,233.02 {69,285.00) 684,848.02
7.688,177.27 136,736.29 1,529,486.38 9,254,401 .02
7.627,288.15 § 694,384.51 § 1.529,488 26 § 9,851,161.02

The accompanying Notes to the Financiat Statements are an integral part of this statement.

30



EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Tota! Fund Balances (Brought Forward) $9,254,401.92
Amounis Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Assets (A-1) are different because:

Capital assels used in govemmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reporled in the funds.
Cost of Assels

$36,327,898.00
Accumnulated Depreciation

(11,441,041.10)
24,886,856.90

Long term fiabilities, including honds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable

Instaliment Purchase Contracts

{3,380,735.00)
(327,327 .88)
{14,750,000.00)
{110,881.62)

(18,568,944 .50)
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable

to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:

Deferred Outfiows
Pension related

351,770.00
Employer Confribution related o pensions

282,270.00
634,040.00

Beferred Inflows:
Pension related {765,603.00)

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore, are nof reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts Payable - Pension Related

(282,270.00)
Accrued Interest Payable

{214,187.50)
{496,457.50)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $14,944,393.82

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES:
Local sources:
tocal fax levy
Tuition from Other LEAs Within State
Miscellaneous

Total - locat sources

State sources
Federal sources

Tolak revenuss

EXPENDITURES:
Cument expense;
Regutar instruction
Special instruction
Other Instruction
Suppoert services:
Student and instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Canral services
Administrative informaton technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Dbt service:
Principai
interest
Special Schools
Capitat outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over {under) expendiures

Other financing sources {usesy.
Fransfers

Instaliment purchase cantract {nen-bdgeted)

Totat other financing sources {(Uses)
het change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1, 2022

Fund balances, June 30, 2023

BORQUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TATEME] PENDITURES AND CHANGES #N
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FQR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3C, 2023

1T B2

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBY TOYAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECYS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
EUND EUhg Eung EUND EUNDS
10,608602.08 § 3 aB2.871.00 & 11,580,863.00
2,172,158.00 2,172,158.00
210.528.45 247,282.86 458,211.31
13,081,17845 247,282.88 882,871.00 14,211,332.31
$0,347,025.85 §$772,420.08 453,979.00 41,573,424 .93
47,09504 1,998,619.48 2,045,714.52
23,475,299.34 3,018,322.42 1,336,850.00 #7,830,471.76
9,376,658.34 9.376,658.34
2,987 27416 2,013,156.78 5,000,430.94
1,457,975.82 1.457,975.82
3,381,919.20 809,962 81 4,491,881.71
525,161.64 §25,1681.64
1.250,798.33 1,256,768.33
426,850.08 4726,850.08
220,085.45 220,085.45
1,966,966.66 1.866.956.55
913,630.24 913,630.24
800,000.00 B00,000.00
536,850.00 536,850.00
51,837.26 51,837.26
20%,145.81 206,960.58 416,108.38
22,768,392.88 3,030,076.87 1.336,850.00 27,136,322.75
705,906.46 (14,757 .45) G85,140.0%
49,635.97 27,714.03 77,250.00
58,472.93 58,472.93
109,008.9G 27.714.03 136.722.93
815,916.38 15,856.58 831.871.94
577226191 5 12077871 § 1,520488.38 & £,422,529.98
758817727 § 136,736.28 $ 1,520488.36 5 $-0- §,254,401.92
HeM e

The accompanying Notes to the Financiai Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SGHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCHIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIHTLRES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GQVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (frem 8.2}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities {A-2) are different because:

Capital cutlazys are reported in govemnmental funds as expenditures. Howaver, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assels is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by wisich capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period

Depreciation expense

Capital outlays $416,106.39
Less: Capital Outlays not capitalized {10,286,39)

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in governmental funds. They are
not revenue in the stalement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term Habifities
in: the statement of net position.

Payment of Bond Principal
Instaliment purchase contract proceeds - Current Year

Repayment of fong-term debt is an expenditure in the govermnmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statemen? of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.
Payment of instaliment purchase condracts

in the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
in governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconcifiation,

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas
in the governmenta] funds, the proceeds from a sale increase financial resources. Thus, the
change in nat assets will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the asset removed(-}.

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of rescurces in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liabily is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension Zabiity adjusied for changes in deferred outfiows and inflows of
resources related 1o pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions 282,487.00
Add: Pension benefit 238,974.00

in the statement of aclivities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In governmentat funds, however, expenditures
{or these #lems are reported in the amounl of financial resources used (paid). When the eamed
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
paid amourt exceeds the eamed amount the difference is an addition 1o the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental activities {A-2)

The accompanying Notes fo the Financial Statements are an integral pari of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

$831,871.94

{1,167,962.10)

405,820.00

800,000.00

(59,472.93)

14,212.62

13,333.33

(23,465.00)

522,471.00

1442646



OTHER FUNDS
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EXHIBIT "B-4"

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD
SERVICE EXTENDICARE
FUND FUND JOTALS
ASSETS:
Cutrent assets:;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,321.21 74,788.05 $ 120,110.26
Accounts receivable:
State 797.17 - 79717
Federal 24,492 64 - 24 492 64
Other 110.35 - 110.35
Inventories 8,763.54 - 8,753.54
Total current asseis 79,474.91 74,788.05 154,263.96
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment 201,440.00 201,440.00
Less accumulated depreciation {104,410.00) (104,419.00)
Total noncurrent assets 97,021.00 - 97,021.00
Total assets 176,495.91 74,789.05 251,284 .96
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Unearned revenue 7,527.87 - 7,527.87
Total current liabilities 7,527.87 - 7,527.87
Total liabilities 7,527.87 - 7,527.87
NET POSITION: -
Net investment in capital assets 97.021.00 - 97,021.00
Unrestricted 71,847.04 74,789.05 146,736.09
Total net position $ 168,968.04 74,788.05 $ 243,757.09

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITB-S"

BOROQUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOQL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

EOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD
SERVICE EXTENDICARE
FUND EUND JOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable $ 92,412.34 3 92.412.34
Daily sales - non-reimbursable 78,197.00 78,187.00
Miscellaneous 500.60 500.00
Program Fees 166,084.90 156,684.90
Total operaling revenues 171,109.34 156,084.90 327,194.24
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales $ 276,907.28 276,907.28
Cost of sales - non-reimburseable 5,135.23 5,135.23
Salaries 199,901.38 134,378.09 334,279.47
Employee benefits 54,038.96 10,278.70 64,315.66
Supplies and materials 1,500.12 1,500.12
Management Fees 13,5630.55 13,530.55
Miscellaneous 56,513.39 56,513.39
Peprediation 10,047.00 10,047.00
Total operating expenses 816,073.79 146,154.91 762,228.70
Operating income {loss) {444,964 .45) 9,929.99 (435,034.46)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES):
State sources:
State scheol lunch program 8,993.60 8,993.60
State school breakfast program 730.50 730.50
Federal sources:
Mational school lunch program 266,068.00 266,068.09
National school breakfast program 33,555.49 33,655.49
National foed distribution commodities 60,383.57 60,383.57
Supply Chain Assistance Program 56,883.08 56,883.08
Interest 2,227.84 2,108.75 4,336.59
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets {641.00) {641.00)
Total non-operating revenues {Expensses) 428,201.17 2,108.75 430,309.92
Income {loss) before contributions and fransfers (16,763.28) 12,038.74 (4,724.54)
Other financing sources
Transfers in {47,250.00) {30,000.00} {77,250.00)
Total other financing sources {(47,250.00) {30,000.00) (77,250.00)
Change in net position (foss) {64,013.28}) (17,961.26) (81,974.54)
Total net position - beginning 232,981 32 92,750.31 325,731.63
Total net pasition - ending $ 168,968.04 $ 74,789.05 $ 243,757.09

The accompanying Noles lo the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to employee benefits
Paymentis {o supphiers

Net cash provided by (used for} operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources

Federal sources

Operating subsidies and transfers fo other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase/{deficit) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2023
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconciiing operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Federal commodilies

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase {decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase {decrease) in accounis payable
Decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by {used for} operating activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an infegral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT'BE™

FOOD PRESCHOOL
SERVICE TUITION PROGRAM
FUND FUND TOTAL
$171,686.93 $156,084.90 $327,771.83
(199,901.38) {134,378.09) (334,279.47)
(54,038.96) (10,276.70) (64,315.66)
(332,229.77) (1,500.12) (333,729.89)
(414,483.18) 9,929.99 (404 553.19)
10,042.35 10,042.35
388,877.38 388,877.38
(47,250.00) (30,000.00) (77,250.00)
351,669.73 (30,000.00) 321,669.73
2,227.84 2,108.75 4,336.59
2,227.84 2,108.75 4,336,59
(60,585.61) (17,961.26) (78,546.87)
105,906.82 92,750.31 198,657.13
45,321.21 74,789.05 120,110.26
(444,964.45) 9,929.99 (435,034.46)
10,047.00 10,047.00
60,383.57 60,383.57
1,988.02 1,088.02
(40,955.81) (40,955.81)
(981.51) (981.51)
30,481.27 30,481.27
(3414.483.18) $9,920.99 ($404,553.19)
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Borough of Keyport School District have been
prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Keyport School District is a Type i District located in Monmouth County, New
Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an educational institution. The District is govermed by a
ten member board. Nine members are elected to three-year terms and one
member is appointed by the Union Beach Board of Education as the Union Beach
representative. The Board is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A
Superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative
control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, are
set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
entitlted “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units”
(GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Caodification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These criteria
are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that
the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary, middle and high schools located in the Borough of Keyport. There
were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the
criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is
not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish generally between the governmental and business-type aclivity of the
District. = Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The statement of
activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in ancther fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional
equipment which are classified in the capital outiay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Depariment of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted
accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are
derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted
capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that
result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing
buiidings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to
or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be fransferred from and to current expense by board
resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account
for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal Governments
(other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds} and
local appropriations that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures
for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary
notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid
provided by the state to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and

report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the
cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing
goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges. The district also considers the
operations of the Extendicare Program as an enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-Wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
“accounts receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined
and ‘“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest
on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under leases and installment
purchase contracts are reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, which became
effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April school Board
election to the date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote
on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis
of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.JA.C. 6A:23. All budget amendmenis and transfers must be
approved by School Board resolution. The over-expenditures related to on-behalf
payments in the general fund are due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-
behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These
amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary
over-expenditures.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the final budget (which have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital
projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to current
year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is
employed as a management control device during the year. For governmental
funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the
legally mandated recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes
only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is
also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, coniracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned or committed fund
balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but
rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund and capital projects fund for
which the District has received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as
unearned revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are executed
and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end balances
are not reported in the financial statements.

inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost on
a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at stated
value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future period, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings and
improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district- wide
financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equiprment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 {(GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences {Continued}

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District’s policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee unions and
contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave that is expected to become eligible for payment upon termination. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by those employees
who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the District-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated fo be
used in the following year. in accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds,
in the fund financial statements, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item
between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance that
is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future use.
Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate tentative
plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund balances
represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the proprietary funds.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue in the general and special revenue funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts

receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is allowable under generally accepted accounting principles.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilittes. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legistation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District's
policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance Reserves

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendabie — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted - includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Maintenance Reserve,
Tuition Reserve, Student Activities, Adult School Emergency Medical Training,
Scholarships and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund Balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves {Continued)

Committed ~ includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by
the Board of Education.

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose,
but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the
District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator. The
District reports Year End Encumbrances and amounts Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned -is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal
year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued}

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entittements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the revenue is earned. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered

both measurable and available at fiscal year end. property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Fund Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing
services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales of food service and the extendicare program. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expense and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on
salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically
identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column of the
Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a
specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on
the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from
those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

in the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees Retirement
System (“PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund ("TPAF”) and the
additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they were reported by PERS and TPAF.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements the year end pension liability is not
required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are reflected
based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with available
financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for PERS are
recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due April 1 of
each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District’s behalf by the State
of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflect both a revenue
and expense for this pension contribution.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of rescurces (expensefexpenditure} until then. Currently, the District has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred infiows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has only one item that
qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

Leases

Lease receivables are measured at the present value of the lease payments
expected to be received during the lease term. The District may receive variable
lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee’s revenue., The variable
payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the payment is
received. The deferred inflow of resources is recorded at the initiation of the lease
in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease receivable. The deferred
inflow of resources is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the lease
term.

Lease liabilities represent obligations to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the
present value of the expected lease payments over the lease term, less any lease
incentives. Interest expense is recognized ratably over the contract term. The
lease term may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Payments for short-term
leases with a term of 12 months or less are expensed as incurred and these leases
are not included as leas liabilities or right —to-use assets on the statements of net
position.

Right to Use Assets

Right to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to
the lease term, less incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the
lease into service. The right to use assets are amortized in a systematic and
rational manner over the life of the related lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2023, the District has implemented GASB
Statement 98, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
(SBITAs). GASB Statement No. 96 defines a SBITA; establishes that a SBITA
results in a right-to-use subscription asset (an intangible asset) and a
corresponding liability; provides capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and requires
note disclosure regarding SBITAs.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, deposits in the
government money market account, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments are
stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories which
are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank that accepts pubiic
funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined as a state bank, a
national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State of New Jersey, the
deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation. The
statutes also require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public
funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All collateral must be deposited with
the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking Institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System, and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits {Continued)

The Keyport School District had the following cash and cash equivalents at
June 30, 2023:

Cash in Reconciled
Bank Deductions Balance
Governmental Funds $9,174,885.77 $460,993.74 $8,713,892.03
Proprietary Fund 166,204.44 46,004.18 120,110.26

$9,341,090.21 $507,087.92 $8,834,002.29

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2023, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJ GUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed
to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank, $250,000.00 was
covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $9,091,090.21 was covered under
the provisions of NJ GUDPA.

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act
of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and {3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds are
also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued}

3.

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued
in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date
not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor.

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the school
district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days
from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts.

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security pursuant
to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized
by such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be
made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.8.A. 18A:20-37. This type
of investment is also required to be rated in the highest category by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4}; or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and {3) of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as
defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-41); and,

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security
of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2023 the District has no investments outstanding. Based upon the
limitations set forth by New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1 the District is generally not
exposed to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments nor is it exposed to foreign currency risk for
its deposits and investments.
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CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets that are not depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets that are not
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Site improvements
Building and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Total gross assets
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Site improvements
Building and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business type activities:
Machinery and equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Business type activities
capital assets, net

Support Services:

Beginning
Balance Retiremeants/ Ending
{As Restated) Additions Transfers Balance
$53,182.00 $53,182.00
53,182.00 53,182.00
1,787,984.00 140,255.00 1,928,239.00
32,368,165.00 23,100.00 32.391,265.00
1,941,808.00 242.465.00 {228,961.00) 1,955,312.00
36,097,957.00 405,820.00 {228,961.00) 36,274,816.00
36,151,139.00 405,820.00 {228,961.00) 36,327,998.00
(593,807.00) (77,270.00) (671,077.00)
(8,560,907.00) (988,290.10) (9,549,197 .10)
(1,323,841.00) (102,422.00) 205,496.00 (1,220,767.00}
(10,478,555.00) (1,167,982.10) 205,496.00 (11,441,041.10)
$25,672,584.00 ($762,162.10) {$23,465.00) $24,886,956.90
$208,695.00 {8,255,00) $201,440.00
{101,986.00) {10,047.00) 7.614.00 (104,418.00)
$107,709.00 {$10,047.00) {$641.00) $97,021.00

Student and instruction related
General adminisiration

School administration

Plant operations and maintenance
Direct Expense of various functions
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A, Education,
of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the voters of the
municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are recorded in the
Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they were approved
in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual installments within the
statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitied to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey Schoolf Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds are
held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free Public
Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of principal
and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer to make
payments.

As of June 30, 2023 the District did not have any bonds authorized but not issued.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Instaliment Compensated
Purchase Contracts Bonds Absences Net Pension
Payable Payable Payable Liability Total

Balance, July 1, 2022 $65,621.31 $15,550,000.60 $341,754.34 $2,724,141.00 $18.681,516.65
Additions/lssued 59,472.93 656,594.00 716,066.93
Reductions 14,212.62 800,000.00 14 426.46 828,630.08
Balance, June 30, 2023 $110,881.62 $14,750,000.00 $327,327.88 $3,380,735.00 $18,568,044.50
Amounts Due

Within One Year $25,678.15 $815,000.00 $840,678.15
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2023, with
interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Year Ending GRAND TOTAL
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2024 $815,000.00 $506,925.00  $1,321,925.00
2025 765,000.00 470,900.00 1,235,900.00
2026 795,000.00 439,700.00 1,234,700.00
2027 830,000.00 407,200.00 1,237,200.00
2028 865,000.00 373,300.00 1,238,300.00
2029-2033 4,450,000.00 1,339,450.00 5,789,450.00
2034-2038 4,450,000.00 600,750.00 5,050,750.00
2039-2040 1,780,000.00 53,400.00 1,833,400.00

$14,750,000.00  $4,191,625.00 $18,941,625.00

Installment Purchases

The District has entered into an installment purchase agreements for equipment.
The agreements are for terms up to five years. Future annual debt service
payments on instaliment purchases as of June 30, 2023 including interest of
$12,261.87 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal interest Total
2024 $25,678.15 $4,960.37 $30,638.52
2025 26,991.80 3,646.72 30,638.52
2026 28,372.63 2,265.89 30,638.52
2027 16,729.14 1,031.19 17,760.33
2028 13,109.80 357.70 13,467.60

$110,881.62 $12,261.87 $123,143.49
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Pians - All required employees of the District are covered by either
the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits {Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed
by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System
and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A.66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.

Public_Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1855 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer pilan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other
state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢c. 78 enacted certain changes in the operations
and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

FPension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS, hired
on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction
of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New members will
be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for caiculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for PFRS),
the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the remaining period
reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-ended 20 year
period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are
set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S5.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits
vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that
vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years
of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest eamed on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State
of New Jersey legisiation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years
beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law’s effective date
for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

PERS Contribution Requirements

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2023 $282,497.00 100.00% $282,497.00
2022 269,302.00 100.00% 269,302.00
2021 238,455.00 100.00% 238,455.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the State of New
Jersey contributed $3,251,757.00, $3,208,502.00, and $2,428,707.00,
respectively to the TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the State of New
Jersey contributed $1,240.00, $1,374.00, and $1,753.00, respectively to the TPAF
long term disability insurance fund on behalf of the District.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, during the years ended June 30,
2023, 2022 and 2021, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$636,556.85, $638,506.50, and $659,259.68, respectively for the employer's
share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their
base salaries.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2023, the State reported a net pension liability of $3,380,735.00 for the
District ’s proportionate share of the total net pension liability. The total pension
liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2022, the District’s proportion was 0.024017639 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.0005935626 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized a pension benefit of
$239,973.00 in the government-wide financial statemenis. This pension benefit
was based on the pension plan’s June 30, 2022 measurement date.

At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outfiows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 24401.00 $ 21,518.00
Changes of assumptions 10,475.00 506,230.00
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 139,926.00
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 176,968.00 237.855.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 282,270.00

3 634,040.00 % 765,603.00

The $282,270.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2023, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2022) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2024.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System {(PERS) {Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount
2023 ($302,173.40)
2024 (159,920.40)
2025 (84,229.40)
2026 145,011.60
2027 (12,521.40)

($413,833.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The coliective total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2022. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

Inflation
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 2.75-6.55%
Based on

Years of Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median
income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4%

adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) {Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 81.4% adjustment for males
and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used fo value
disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a
generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30,
2021.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The iong-term

expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic rates of return for each major assets class included in PERS's target
assets allocation as of June 30, 2022 asset are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
US Equity 27.00% 8.12%
Non-U.8. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.38%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.33%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.80%
Real Estate 8.00% 11.19%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.60%
High Yield 4.00% 4.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 8.10%
investment Grade Credit 7.00% 3.38%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 1.75%
U.S. Treasury’s 4.00% 1.75%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.91%
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Public Employees Retirement System {PERS) {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make ail projected future
benefit payments of current pian members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to all proiected benefit payments in
determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
of the participating employers as of June 30, 2022 respectively, calculated using
the discount rate as disclosed above as weli as what the District's proportionate
share of the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1- percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2022

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability $4,343,254 .00 $3,380,735.00 $2.,561,592.00

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 285 Trenton, New Jersey

08625-0295 http:/fwww state.nj. us/treasury/pensions.
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required fo be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding sifuation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not confribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the porlion of the nonemployer contributing
entities’ total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Net FPension Liability:

Districts proportionate share ~0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District 40,765,272.00
$40,765,272.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021 which was rolled forward fo June 30, 2022. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
fong-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2022, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .0790110165% which was a decrease of .0029793279 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense
and revenue of $1,097,107.00 in the government-wide financial statements for
contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was based on
the pension plans June 30, 2022 measurement date.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolied forward to June 30,
2022. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement:

inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary increases 1.55%-5.65%
Based on Years of Service
fnvestment Rate of Return 7.00%
Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a
114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the

results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30,
2021.
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

in accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
{expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.8. Equity 27.00% 8.12%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.38%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.33%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.19%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.60%
Real Estate 8.00% 11.19%
High Yield 4.00% 4.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 8.10%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 3.38%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 1.75%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 1.75%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.91%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers wili be based on 100% of
the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected
benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) {Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’'s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers Public
and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295
hitp:/iwww.state.nj. us/treasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS — GASB 75

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legaily required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S. A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered o be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No.
75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees'
Retirement Systemn (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS),
or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the
cost of their heaith care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 213,148
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 151,669

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits ol O
Total Plan Members 364,817
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Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The portion of the Total Non-employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Non-employer OPEB Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $45,058,857
$45,058,857

The Total Non-employer OPER Liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, which was rolied forward to June 30,
2022.

The Total Non-employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $1,162,019 in the government-wide financial
statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and revenue was
based on the plans June 30, 2022 measurement date,

At June 30, 2023, the District's proportion was 0.0889674310 percent, which was
an decrease of .0016022466 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2022.

The State, a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS,
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District's proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Imputes

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2022 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2022.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan
member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:
June 30, 2022
TPAF/ABP PERS PERS

inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases 2.75-4.25%* 2.75-6.55%*  3.25-16.25%"
*- Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP)," General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
fable with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2021 for current disables retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the
Pub-2010 “"Safety" (PFRS), "General" (PERS), and "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP)
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results
of the TPAF, PERS and PFRS experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to
June 30, 2021.
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Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefils, the trend rate is initially 6.25% and decreases
to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits
PPO, the trend is initially -1.99% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 13.44% in fiscal
year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For HMO the trend is initially
-3.54% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 15.19% in fiscal year 2026 and decreases
to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is
8.00% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the
Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.54%. This
represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source
is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As
the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered
in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal
bond rate.

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability
Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability

associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2021 to June

30, 2022.
Balance at 6/30/21 $54,348,736
Changes for the year:
Service cost $2,358,335
Interest 1,184,109

Changes of Benefit Terms
Differences between expected

and actual experience 389,976
Changes in assumptions or
other inpuis {12,087.443)
Membership Contributions 37,945
Benefit payments - Net {1,182,801)
Net changes {8,289,879)
Balance at 6/30/22 $45,058,857
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Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total nonempioyer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2022 calculated using the discount rate as disciosed above
as well as what the total nonemployer OFER liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point iower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2022

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (2.54%) Rate (3.54%) Increase (4.54%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $52,961,947 $45,058,857 $38,724,926

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total non-employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2022 respectively, calculated using the healthcare trend rate
as disclosed above as well as what the total non-employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2022

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $37,243,899 $45,058,857 $55,324,278
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee's OPEB associated with
the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutfiow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $8,044,793 $13,756,980
Changes of assumptions 7,798,547 15,335,573
Changes in proportion 1,184,344 2,003,966
$17,027,684 $31,006,529

Amounts rep Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s OPEB associated with
the District will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount
2023 ($2,403,369)
2024 ($2,403,369)
2025 ($2,403,369)
2026 ($2,099,366)
2027 {$1,270,635)
Total
Thereafter ($3,488,735)

($14,068,845)
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

In accerdance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available reports
on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0285 or on their website at
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensionsffinancial-reports.shiml.

LITIGATION

The Board attorney’s letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board’s financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable reguiations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2022-2023
fiscal year were subject to the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited in
conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would result
in material amounts of disallowed costs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for property, liability, and student accident and surety bonds. A complete
schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this
Annual Comprehensive Financial Repori.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences atfributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick feave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2023,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district- wide statement of net position of $327,327.88.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

INVENTORY
Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $8,753.54

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act amendments of 1996) is the difference between market
value and cost of the commaodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.
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NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

NOTE 15:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans were
disbursed and payments between funds were made. The following interfund
balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2023.

Interfund interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $215,971.36
Special Revenue Fund $215,971.36
$215,971.36 $215,971.38

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2023.

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund — Of the $7,588,177.27 General Fund fund balance at June 30,
2023, $754,233.02 was unassigned, $67,889.66 has been assigned for year-end
encumbrances; $1,837,059.00 is restricted in the capital reserve; $937,863.72 is
restricted in the maintenance reserve; $500,000.00 is restricted in the tuition
reserve; $2,598.27 has been restricted for FFCRA semi designated for subsequent
years expenditures; $475,117.73 is unassigned fund balance designated for
subsequent years expenditures; $3,013,415.87 is restricted as excess surplus in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A7F-7, of which $1,075,000.00 has been
appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30,
2024,
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NOTE 16:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,¢.73 (§1701), the
designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required calculation
pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and
Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
restrict General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they
did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent years’ budget. Based on this calculation, the Keyport School District
has $2,206,195.87 excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June 30,

2023,

General Fund Expenditures
Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 2023

Add:

Transfer from General Fund to SRF for Preschool (Inclusion)
lLess:

Assets Acquired under Installment Purchase Contract

On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures

Excess Surplus Percentage
2% of Adjusted 2022-23 General Fund Expenditures

Add: Allowable Adjustments
Maximum Unassigned Fund Balance
Actual Unassigned Fund Balance

Excess Surplus

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus, June 30, 2023:

Restricted for Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditure

Restricted for Excess Surplus
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$22,768,392.88

27,714.00

59,472.83
4,743,782.85

17,892,851.10

2.00%

359,857.02
394,376.00
754,233.02

3,185,192.89

$2,430,959.87

$1,075,000.00
2,430,859.87

$3,505,959.87




NOTE17:

NOTE 18:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

TUITION RESERVE

A tuition reserve was established by the Borough of Keyport School District
in accordance with N.JA.C. 6A:23-3.1(f). This reserve is for formal
sendingfreceiving relationships between two district board of educations
established under subchapter 3 of the business service code pursuant o N.J.S.A.
18A:38-19. The maximum amount that may be restricted at year end is 10% of
the estimated contract year.

The activity of the tuition reserve for the year ending June 30, 2023 is as foliows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2022 $500,000.00
Add: Board resolutions 250,000.00
Less: Withdrawals - adopted budget (250,000.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $500,000.00
CAPITAL RESERVE

A capital reserve was established by the Borough of Keyport Board of Education
for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent
fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve as per
N.J.8.A. 18A7G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.J.A.C. BA23A-14.1 by appropriating
funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may also
appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been
obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at
one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. N.J.S.A.
18A:7F-41(a), 18A.7TF-41(b) and N.J.A.C.6A:23A-14.3 permit a district board of
education to transfer by board resolution (prior to June 30) any unanticipated
revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts to the capital reserve for
withdrawal in subsequent school years. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the year ending June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Beginning halance, July 1, 2022 $2,023,141.00
Less: Withdrawal- adopted budget/board resolution {186,082.00)
Ending Balance, June 30, 2023 $1.837.059.00
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NOTE 19:

NOTE 20:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

MAINTENANCE RESERVE

A maintenance reserve was established through a board resolution by the Borough
of Keyport School District for the accumulation of funds for the required
maintenance of a facility in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9 as amended by
P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701). N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.JA.C.
BA:23A-14.2 permits districts, by board resolution, to transfer undesignated
general fund balance o the maintenance reserve account if approved in the
district’s original budget certified for taxes or if the district received voter approval
by a separate proposal at budget time or by special question at one of the four
special elections authorized pursuant o N.J.S.A.19:60-2. N.J.S.A. 18A.7F-41(a),
18A:7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C.6A:23A-14.3 permit a district board of education to
transfer by board resolution (prior to June 30) any unanticipated revenue or
unexpended line-item appropriation amounts o the maintenance reserve for
withdrawal in subsequent school years.

Beginning balance, July 1, 2022 $1,237,863.72
Add: Board resolution 200,000.00

1,.437,863.72
Less: Withdrawals - adopted budget {500,000.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $837.863.72
TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax
abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in
which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts
are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements.
However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may
have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed
in these financial statements. If the county of municipality entered into tax
abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school
district's local tax revenue because N.J.5.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and
remitted to the school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has
elected to raise their minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the municipality or county
having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the
complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New
Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth.
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NOTE 21:

NOTE 22:

NOTE 23:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION

The District has a deficit fund balance of $69,285.00 in the Special Revenue Fund
as of June 30, 2023 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis).

N.J.S.A 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not
made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid
payment as revenue, in the current budget year. The statute provides legal
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year.

For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition (revenue, expenditures, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e. if
one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability.

Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal
year, the school district cannot recognize the last two state aid payments on the
GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the
timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the fund balance deficits
in the Special Revenue Fund do not alone indicate that the District is facing
financial difficulties. Pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97, any negative unreserved,
undesignated general fund balance that is reported as a direct result from the delay
in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered in
violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The
District's deficit in the GAAP funds' statements does not exceed the last state aid
payment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the
financial statement date through December 1, 2023 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Net Position at June 30, 2022 has been adjusted to properly reflect Capital Assets:

District-Wide Financial Statements:

Governmental
Activities
Net Position 06/30/22 $12,441,816.00
Adjustments:
Capital Asset Adjustment 1,151,362.50
Net Position
06/30/22 (As restated) $13,593,178.50
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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REVENUES:
Federal sources 3
State sources
Other sources

Tolal revenues §

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased professional - educational services
Other Prurchase professional service
Tuition
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and materials
Miscelianepus Expenditures

Total instruction

Support services:
Other Salaries for instruction
Personal Services Employee - Benefits
Purchased professionat - educationad services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and materials
Miscellaneous Expenditures

Total support services

Facilittes acquisition and construction services:
Construction
Nor-instructional equipment
instructional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and construction serv.

Total expenditures $

Gther financing sources (uses)
Transfer from general fund

Excess {deficiency) of revenuas over
(under) expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30
Scholarships

Student Activities
Emergency Medical Training

BOROUGH OF KEYPQRT SCH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

ERISTRICTE

EXHIBIT "C-2*

FOR THE EISCAL YEAR EN NE 30, 2023
BUDGET
ORIGINAL TRANSFERS/ FINAL VARIANCE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS BUDGEY ACTUAL FINAL TO ACTUAL
3,152,867.02 § 878,101.01 $ 4,031,588.03 § 2122,197.77 {1,808,790.26)
B872,224.00 44,937.97 917,164.97 778,107.40 (141,054.57)
433,328.57 433 328.57 247,282,868 (186,045.71)
4,025111.02 & 1,357,367.55 $ 5,382,478.57 $ 3,145,588.03 § (2,236,800.54)
1,020,776.48 142,037.00 1,132,815.48 677,708.73 455,108.75
86,104.00 89,080.63 175,184.53 153,613.8¢ 21,570.74
12,145.00 116,161.63 128,308.63 128,306.63
1,487 677.95 89,855.32 1,577,533.27 877,533.27 700,600.00
196,156.07 {30,586.25) 165,550,852 158,087.39 7,472.43
8,100.00 5,100.00
2,610,961.50 376,538.33 3,187,498.83 1,895,248 61 1,184,149.92
282,957 .84 {101,187.83) 184,760.01 123,715.69 56,044.32
447,960.00 61,569.00 509,538.00 420,656.71 88,881.29
175,566.75 136,733.49 212,300.24 119,107.02 193,193.22
50,616.86 331,401.45 382,018,314 25,667.91 356,350.40
91,555.58 (45,338,81) 46,216.77 38,700.20 7.516.57
46,443,13 477,005.92 523,449.05 234,568.90 288,880.15
1,085,109.18 860,173.22 1,955,282.38 962,416.43 $92,665.95
24,466.00 23,318.00 47,784.00 47,784.00
50,464.36 131,448.00 191,912.36 147,876.14 44,036.22
34,110.00 (34,110.00)
119,040.36 120,656.00 239,696,368 105 660.14 44,036.22
4,025111.02 $ 1,357 387.55 $ 5,382,478.57 $ 3,153,326.48 § 2,221,052.08
27,714.03 {27,714.03)
4,025111.02 $ 1,357 367.55 § 5,382,478,57 $ 3,12561245 % 2,248,766.12
19,875.58
$ 186,045.71
§ 208,021.29
5,521.66
110,930.76
89,568.87
208,021.28
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budgset to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that encumbrances
are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized for
GAAP statements until the subsequent year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures” from the
budgetary comparison schedule,

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

90

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$23,440,307.34 $3,145,588.09
(123,246.61)
(492,544.00) (69,285.00)
527,536.00 65,266.00
$23,475,209.34 $3,018,322 48
$22,768,392.88 $3,153,326.51
(123,246 .61)
$22,768,392.88 $3,030,079.90




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Il
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASE 68)
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PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART i

BORQUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Change in benefit terms:

Change in assumptions:

None

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension

fiability in their respective accounting pericds:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2018
2015
2014
2013

Discount
Rate
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
6.28%
5.66%
5.00%
3.98%
4.90%
5.39%
5.65%

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:

Change in assumptions:

None

Long-Term Expected
Rate of Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.65%
7.90%
7.90%
7.80%

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension

liability in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30,
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

Discount
Rate
7.00%
7.00%
5.40%
5.60%
4.86%
4.25%
3.22%
4.13%
4.68%
4.95%

96

Long-Term Expected
Rate of Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.85%
7.890%
7.90%
7.90%

EXHIBIT "L-4"

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/18-06/30/21
07/01/14-06/30/18
07/01/14-068/30/18
07/01/14-06/30/18
07/01711-06/30/14
67/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/08-06/30/11
07/01/08-06/30M 1
07/01/08-06/30/11

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/18-06/30/21
07/01/15-06/3018
07/01/15-06/30/18
G7/01/15-06/30/18
07/0112-06/30/15
07/01/12-08/30M5
07/01/12-06/30/15
07/01/08-08/30/12
07/01/09-08/30/12
07/01/08-06/30M2
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER
THAN PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR OPEB (GASB 75)
NOTE TO RSI IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate

2022 3.54%
2021 2.16%
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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EXHIBIT "E-2"
BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023
BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE

EXPENDITURES:
instruction:

Salaries of teachers $424,677.00 314,170.08 $110,506.92

(General supplies 10,000.00 5,050.88 4,949.12
Total Instruction 434,677.00 383,754.22 50,822.78
Support Services:

Other salaries 115,204.51 93,158.06 22,136.45

Personal services - employee benefils 255,842.00 255,842.00 0.00

Purchased professional services 8,327.49 4187 .50 4,139.99

Supplies and materials 10,000.00 9,712.46 287.54

Miscellaneous expenditures 86,361.00 3,675.26 82,685.74
Total Support Services 475,825.00 366,575.28 109,249.72
Total expenditures $910,502.00 $750,329.50 $160,172.50

CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER

Total 2022-2023 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $692,850.00
Add: Actual ECPA/ Preschool Education Aid Carryover (June 30, 2023) 189,537.97
Add: budgeted transfer from General Fund 27,714.03
Total Preschoot Education Aid Available for 2022-2023 Budget 910,502.00
Less: 2022-2023 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (inciuding prior year budgeted carryover) (910,502.00)
Availabfe and Unbudgeted Preschool Education Funds as of June 30, 2023 .00
Add: June 30, 2023 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 160,172.50
2022-2023 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid Programs $160,172.50
2022-2023 Preschoof Education Aid Carryover Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2023-2024 $189,938.00
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outiays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.
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EXHIBIT "F-2°

BORCUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Fund balance - beginning $1,520,488.36

Fund balance - ending $1,529,488.36
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PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICES FUND: This fund provides for the operation of Food services
within the school district.

EXTENDICARE FUND: This fund provides for the operation of a before and
after school care program.
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EXHIBIT "G-1"

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOQD
SERVICE EXTENDICARE
FUND FUND TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis $45,321.21 $74,789.05 $120,110.26
Accounts receivable:
State 797.17 797.17
Federal 24,492.64 24,492 .64
Other 110.35 110.35
Inventories 8,7563.54 8,753.54
Total current assets 79,474.91 74,789.05 154,263.96
Noncurrent assels:
Furniture, machinery and equipment 201,440.00 201,440.00
Less accumulated depreciation (104,419.00) {104,419.00)
Total noncurrent assets 97.021.00 97,021.00
Total assets 176,495 91 74,789,056 251,284.96
LIABHITIES :
Current liabilities;
Unearned revenue 7,527.87 7,527.87
Total current liabilites 7,527.87 7,527.87
Total liabilities 7,527 87 7,527.87
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 97,021.00 97.021.00
Unrestricted 71,947.04 74,789.05 146,736.09
Total net position $168,968.04 $74,789.05 $243,757.08

112



EXHIBIT "G-2"

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD
SERVICE EXTENDICARE
FUND FUND TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimburseable $92.412.34 $82,412.34
Daily sales - non-reimbursable 78,197.00 78,197.00
Miscellaneous 500.00 $500.00
Program Fees $156,084.90 156,084.90
Total operating revenues 171,109.34 156,084.00 327,194.24
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales 276,907.28 276,807.28
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable 5,135.23 5,135.23
Salaries 199,901.38 134,378.09 334,279.47
Employee bensfils 54,038.96 10,276.70 64,315.66
Supplies and materials 1,500.12 1,500.12
Management fees 13.530.55 13,530.55
Miscelianeous 56,513.38 56,513.38
Depreciation 10,047.00 10,047.00
Totat operating expenses 616,073.79 146,154 .91 762,228.70
Operating income (loss) {444 964 .45) 8,929.99 (435,034 .46)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
State sources:
State school lunch program 8.993.60 8,983.60
State school breakfast program 730.50 730.50
Federal sources:
National schoot lunch program 266,068.09 266,068.09
National schoot breakfast program 33,555.49 33,555.49
National food distribution commodities 60,383.57 60,383.57
Supply Chain Assistance Program 56,883.08 56,883.08
interest 2,227.84 2,408.75 4,336.59
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assels (641.00) (641.00)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 428,21.17 2,108.75 430,309.92
Income/(loss) before contributions and transfers {16,763.28) 12,038.74 (4,724.54)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out {47,250.00) (30,000.00) {77,250.00)
Total other financing uses {47,250.00) (30,000.00) {77,250.00)
Change in net position (64,013.28) {17,961.26) {81,974 54)
Total net position - beginning 232,881.32 02,750.31 325,731.63
Total net position - ending $168,868.04 $74,789.05 $243,757.09
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
ECQR THE FISCAL YEAR ENBED JUNE 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD

EXHIBIT "G-3"

Cash fiows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Paymenis {o employees
Paymenis fo employee benefils
Paymenis {o suppliers

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources

Federal sources

Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
nterest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities

MNet increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients, June 30, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents, June 34, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activilies

Operating income (loss)

Adiustments to reconclling operating income (joss) o
net cash provided by (used for) operaling activities:
Depreciation
Federal commodities

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase {decrease) in unearmned revenue
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by operating activities

SERVICE EXTENDICARE

FUND FUND TOTAL
$171,686.93 $156,084.90 $327.771.83
{199,901.38) {134,378.00) (334,279.47)
{54,038.96) (10,276.70) (64,315.56)
(332,220.77) {1,500.12) (333,729,89)
(414,463.18) 9,929.99 (404,553.19)
10,042.35 10,042.35
388,877.38 388,877.38
{47,250,00) (30,000.00) (17,250.00)
351,669.73 (30,000,00) 321,669.73
2,227.84 2,108.75 4,336.59
2,227.84 2,108.75 4,336.50
(60,585.61) (17.961.26) (78,546.87)
105,906.82 92,750.31 198,657 13
45,321.21 74,789.05 120,110.26
{444,964.45) 9,929.99 {435,034 46)
10,047.00 10,047.00
60,383.57 60,383.57
1,966.02 1,988.02
{40,955.81) (40,855.81)
(981.51) (981.51)
30,481.27 30,461.27
($414,483.18) $8,929 99 ($404,553.19)
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
long-term Habilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Installment
Purchase Contracls.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contenis Page

Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-110 J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-510 J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information 10 help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability 1o issue
additional debt in the future. J-101{o J-13

Demographic and Economic information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place.  J-14 {0 J-15

Operating information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data o help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the infarmation in these schedules is derived from the annual
comprehensive financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-6"

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
UNAUDRITED

Percentage of Net

Net Assessed Estimated Full Cash Assessed to Estimated

Year Valuation Taxable Valuations Full Cash Valuations

2022 $909,949,085.00 $891,861,800.00 102.03%
2021 822,360,027.00 824,395,384.00 89.75%
2020 784,768,300.00 775,386,128.00 101.21%
2019 739,211,600.00 772,748,902.00 95.66%
2018 710,171,300.00 709,107,639.00 100.15%
2017 693,663,200.00 708,180,809.00 97.95%
2016 680,441,700.00 700,547 ,711.00 97.13%
2015 £663,678,100.00 676,601,183.00 98.08%
2014 635,897,100.00 657,122,145.00 96.77%
2013 639,829,108.00 637,026,142.00 100.44%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statule, a
municipality is required fo remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted

upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOQL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

UNAUDITED

EXHIBIT "J-9"

2023 Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Fiscal Year Ended  Taxes Levied for the Percentage Collections in
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subseguent Years
2023 11,580,863.00 § 11,580,963.00 100.00% 0.00
2022 11,370,005.00 11,370,005.00 100.00% 0.00
2021 10,970,216.00 10,970,216.00 100.00% 0.00
2020 10,308,465.00 10,308,465.00 100.00% 0.00
2019 10,071,754.00 10,071,754.00 100.00% 0.00
2018 9,883,247.00 9,883,247.00 100.00% 0.00
2017 9,603,953.00 9,603,953.00 100.00% 0.00
2016 9,276,415.00 9,276,415.00 100.00% 0.00
2015 8,927 907.00 8,927,907.00 100.00% 0.00
2014 8,599,175.00 7,891,339.00 91.77% 707,836.00

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year

Ended
Jupe 36

2023
2022
2021
2018
2019
2020
2016
2017
2015
2014

Source: District ACFR Schedules 1-1, 1-2

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Governmental Activities

General
Obligation
Bonds

18,711,600.00 §%

15,550,000.00
16,320,000.00
16,635,000.00
1,815,000.00
2,490,000.00
3.045,000.00
3,580,000.00
4,180,000.00
4,775,000.00

UNAUBITED
Installment
Purchase Total
Contracts District
110,881.682 $ 18,822,481.62
65621.31 15,615,621.31
16,320,000.00
16,635,000.00
1,815,000.00
2,490,000.00
1,520.97 3,046,520.97
19,354.75 3,599,354.75
50,449.44 4,240,449.44
57,562.85 4,832 562.85

EXHIBIT "J-10"

Percentage
of Personal
Income (a) Per Capita (a)
N/A N/A
N/A 2,180.65
0.56% 2,267.93
0.52% 2,393.18
4.30% 274.04
3.18% 353.14
2.49% 432.99
2.03% 510.11
1.67% 598.93
1.40% 678.54

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes fo the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the prior calendar year,
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

Fiscal Year General Net General
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding

2023 14,750,000.00 -0- $  14,750,000.00
2022 15,550,000.00 -0- 15,550,000.00
2021 16,320,000.00 -0- 16,320,000.00
2020 16,635,000.00 -0- 16,635,000.00
2019 1,915,000.00 -0- 1,815,000.00
2018 2,480,000.00 -0- 2,490,000.00
2017 3,045,000.00 -0- 3,045,000.00
2016 3,580,000.00 -0- 3,580,000.00
2015 4,190,000.00 (- 4,190,000.00
2014 4,775,000.00 -0- 4,775,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

EXHIBIT *J-11"

Value (a) of

Property Per Capita (b)
1.621% N/A

1.891% 2,160.82
2.080% 2,267.93
2.120% 2,393.18
0.259% 274.04
0.351% 353.14
0.439% 432.99
0.526% 510.11
0.631% 598.93
0.751% 678.54

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

{a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
{(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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EXHIBIT "J-12"

BORQUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVEREAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

UNAUDITED
Net Direct Debt of School District as of December 31, 2022 $15,080,000.00
Qverlapping County Debt 2,950,810.00
Municipal Debt 8,687,119.00
Total Direct and Qverlapping Bonded Debt $27,728,020.00

Source: Borough of Keyport Chief Financial Officer, Monmouth County Treasurer's Office
{a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property

valyes, Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14°

BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population (a) Personal income (b) Personal Income (c) Rate (d)
2022 7,161 $ N/A $ N/A 3.70%
2021 7,196 662,888,324.00 92,119.00 5.90%
2020 6,951 598,418,541.00 86,091.00 10.30%
2019 6,988 574,902,760.00 82,270.00 4.10%
2018 7,051 558,784,699.00 79,249.00 4.10%
2017 7,036 533,863,536.00 75,876.00 5.20%
2016 7,056 515,610,144.00 73,074.00 5.10%
2015 7.080 501,023,280.00 70,766.00 5.20%
2014 7.122 480,589,682.00 67,481.00 6.60%
2013 7,155 457,726,815.00 63,973.00 5.90%

Source:

{a} Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

(b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income pres

(¢} Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upen the 2000 Census published by the US Bureau
Economic Analysis.

(d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

N/A - Not Available
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BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

UNAUDITED

EXHIBIT "J-19"

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-XXX

School Facilities *

Project #(s)

2023 $
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

* - School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
{(N.JAC. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A26A-1.3)

Source: District records

Total

282,949.58 $

255633.63
338,080.07
313,043.67
480,832.65
332,250.68
357,482.29
420,411,890
1,010,323.27
344,341.58

137

Cedar Drive
Middle School

149,962.97 $

135,485.99
179,182.44
165,913.15
254,841.30
176,092.86
189,465.62
222.818.31
535,471.34
179,057.62

Conover Road
Primary School

132,986.61
120,147 .64
158,897.63
147,130.52
225,991.35
156,157.82
168,016.67
197,593.59
474,851.93
165,283.96



School Alliance Insurance Fund

Property Coverage:
Blanket Real and Personal Property
Blanket Extra Expense
Blanket Valuable Papers and Records
Blanket EDP

Boiler and Machinery Coverage:
Property Damage

Crime Coverage:
Forgery and Alteration
Faithful Performance Blanket Dishonesty
Funds Transfer Fraud

General Liability Coverage:
General Aggregate
Bodily injury and Property Damage
Fire Damage
Medical Expense
Sexual Molestation Sublimit

Employee Benefits Liability

Communicable Disease
Automobile Coverage:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists

Cyber Coverage:
Aggregate Limit Per Scheduled Insured
Cyber Extortion
Environmental Impairment Coverage:
Each Claim
Fund Aggregate (Shared Limit)
School Board Legal Coverage:
Limit of Liability
{EP Hearing
Excess Coverage:
Limit of Liability (AL/GL)
Limit of Liability (SLPL}

BORQUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2023
UNAUDITED

Coverage Amount

$56,575,112.00
50,000,000.00
500,000.00
576,079.00

56,575,112.00

50,000.00
500,000.60
50,000.60

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

2,500,0600.00

10,000.00

10,000,000.00/occurrence;
10,000,000.00/member aggregate,
28,500,000.00/fund aggregate (shared limit)
5,000,000.00/member annual aggregate
500,000.00/member aggregate

10,000,000.00
15,000.00/person; 30,000.00/accident;
5,000.00/property damage

2,000,000.00
750,000.00

1,600,000.00
10,000,000.00

5,000,000.00
100,000.00

10,000,000.00
15,000,000.00

138

EXHIBIT "J-20"
SHEET#1

Beductible

$2,500.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
2,500.00

2,5600.00
1,000.00

1,000.00
25,000.00

1,000,060

1,000.00 (Auto Physical Damage)
500.00 {property damage}

10,000.00
10,000.60
56,000.00

5,000.00
5,000.00



BOROUGH OF KEYPORT SCHOOQI DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2023
UNAUDITED

Coverage Amount
Fireman's Fund Insurance Company

Excess Liability Coverage:
Each Occurrence 25,000,000.00
Agaregate (Shared Limit) 25,000,000.00

New Jersey Schools insurance Group

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability Coverage:

Baodily injury by Accident 3,000,000.00/accident
Bodily injury by Disease 3,000,000.00/femployee,
3,000,000.00/aggregate

ironshore Specialty Insurance Company

Site Poliution Coverage:

Policy Aggregate 1,000,000.00
Third Party Claims 1,000,000.00
First Party Remediation Expenses 1,000,000.00
Disinfection Event Expenses 250,600.00
Moid Matter Aggregate 500,000.00

Lioyd's Syndicate 2623/623 (Beazley Furlonge Lid}

Excess Environmental Liability Coverage:

Each Poliution Condition including Claims Expenses 500,000.00
Policy Aggregate 500,000.00
Crisis & Reputation Management Expenses Sublimit 250,600.00

Microbial Matter
Selective insurance Company of America

Public Official Surety Bond Coverage:
Board Secretary 225,000.00

Source: District Records
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EXHIBIT "J.20"

SHEET #2

Deductible

25,000.00
25,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.60

25,000.00
25,000.00
25,000.00
100,000.00
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EXHIBIT "K-1"

SurPLEE, CLoONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone $08-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Borough of Keyport School District
County of Monmouth

Keyport, New Jersey 07735

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities each major fund of the
Borough of Keyport School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey (the
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 1, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's control over financial reporting (internal control} as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Borough of Keyport School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed fests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.
.J I'FL 0(% ¢ %/
OUNKANTS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC'ACC

fobd W/ AN

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

December 1, 2023
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Borough of Keyport School District
County of Monmouth

Keyport, New Jersey 07735

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Borough of Keyport School District’'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New
Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Borough of Keyport School District's major federal and state programs for the year
ended June 30, 2023. The District's major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement. Our responsibilities under those
standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.
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SuPLEE, CLoONEY & COMPANY

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with
the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to the District’s federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s
compliance with the requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement, we;

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit,

» |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

» Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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SurLeEg, CLOONEY & COMPANY

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in infernal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dl Clop 40,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

4t w

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

December 1, 2023

144



[RiouURYY & 6 BBINESLDS 6] 880U
2918LES Tr¥ 502 PESE) POTeL 085 28]  LLELLIYGEZ§  DOSEIS B TPG Eree)
L99E5E {poEeY' v ez ogg'oLr) Q8 ERLEEE {Z) Bg'rgl
LAHEE {pezer'rT 167 06894y} BLLAGOEY L eag'vs)
TS8E2h) LG GEEEL 10°66E°Z1
(98 58E°1E) BEBEETLE IKEEHELL
h2260%€2) LAZBOET LLT80'ET
LEGECE {r658E'e) B EHOPE
{06452 {ey 655'€E) BY 66608 GV ESEEE
v LORY by 2ov'gw) DLERL'80S
(E9'E L) {80°896'992) SELEL L S0°990'98L
oA THE A vo8IVE »uez'er
PEE: A €€ L0208} BB 00 reL'te
40564 08 212’608} 1242812217} L BEROOLE noGEL {oB ree‘agy)
{06°Lpe'Zez} (44 BREESELY LOBRS'MY'L {0 2wz soet
o0'2zr'04 100" 22r'onl Lt ye)
(74 7N (5422008} o066 {ooges sl 00'105'98
(662055} LS9'sE fer zsa'o8) 900006
{oo-008'82) o6 '008'ST fadelevyed
00'gL) {00'gve'ze) 000LLZE 06 ryBL
{eToreRt) {oze22228} Q0B 055 {65 448" 240) 00 55 BYPL
1547250°02) QOLPLET {82 ve9'e) BOU0H'se
{0g 208'8) {EgERLeL 0OHEL'S {tg g5y oeLLee
{tasig sl {evee5'964} QLG {15 1682 00'BEYES0E
WE'F {00 95¢'8) 00'ZE'0RE
- iy 0ig's) - - [y ZZoze) DALY - igegil'a)
- - [ [CETE 0026888
- wr9i5's tyy 29zl 0075098 o0 2ze'ey
{00'585°001} (01 'ZOZ'HOE! oy oreied fog eegor)
o 0L+ TESE NOTLE 0080'Y
OPIZE {op1zg'Lt OLPE
0062’0} {00gi5's! wvite QWELES
THDEELL {orose'Ly) H00LLgY
e 00T LT {06125 42} 86 9R0'LLE
{o0'962'e8) {o0°260'682) RETE 00°{50°882
00583 8y 508'611) - - {9b ¥BO'EZE} OO ObS'6EE o0gsh fwocotsetl
T60 505 €1 (g o5 FEET PEBSELL
(et 451'w) sozszalt OS60FL o0 9E'ZE
foag=:k orer's oU'SELS {aosvo's) BLZOLE
{sgezts) {4oerez) GO GLE'EL 603EEy
OUEEL0EL 00 25500I8F  ZEBREBEE
{o6'81£'8018) {06 288242} R 00 LW'SLZ
- - - - - {rogs0°4r} POSE0 LY - :
- - [ €108t vL SL 091
- - eresTel ¢ EvesZe % 1EPELZE
EUTRES EPREAEY WHTAETSE TENTWE  TINTCmogHens  SRRUONEENE  OTAEoEE INIALEOY st TRV
3na G3NEYINA SINNOooY) SBHVEA QL HONOUHL AMVLIOONE HEVD 0 ENAr LY Qsvimy
£E0C OF BNAT FONY Y8 BONMd 40 ~GISSV FONVTvE
SNINAYIIY
TEOE T Y Q90N SEVIA TaoH SRl BT
S T e R O G M e g e et
THEIE OOHaS Lo0dsa% 30 Fenouss
VIS

Aag

CEOTGEIS0 2T LOLG
e el] TZOZALL0
ZZOR/OE/0 EEDRILOLD
ZZOTIORIB0 FROTILG 0
SZOLAOEIL TIOTND
Z20%0E/R0 F202/10020
C20Z/0L/B0 ZEOILOND
ZTOTIOE0 FEDENDNG
£20L0Er30 LD
VTOZHERG OTOLELED
PEIRAENG OTOLEVED
PEOTOE/G0 DUGLELED
PIOZWEMG  OUOTEMRD
PEOZOEBD QTOLEWED
VEOLICEB0 OZOTRAED
ETOTI0E/ME0 QZOTELED
Pravdisinicie] UZOZRLED
£ZOT/CE/BO OTAZICLIED
ZZOTAOS/E0 CZOTELIED
ZIGTOLED $TOEHOIED
ETOLALIE0 TZOTILIC
TZOZIEIBO 120200
LZozineisa LZOTLOHO
EZOZIOE/G0 ZEOLLONE
LEOLOEIE LZ0ZA/L0
CLOTHLIGD LZ0TN0IL0
EZOZIOEIB0 2EOLILLILD
ZZ0T/OReT LEOZILOMA
SEOTALEN LZOZ/LOMG
ZZOLCEB0 LMD
CZOT/OL/B0 TZ0/L0M0
TEOTAOE/S0 1ZOTANLO
ETOTIOESB0 peorairh]
STOLI0EII0 ZROEONG
praizale = ZEOTHGLD
[ i)
GORIAd 1NvHD

EOGANFYEMNLET
COBINPYEINZT
BEOLNPORINEZT
EEOLNPOETNLZE
BEOLNPOEINEET
GEOLNPOESNELT
BEOLNPOErNLET
BECLNPOEINIZT
BEOLNPOETNIES

LEQOIZMGTYS
LZOGLENSTFS
LLO0LTNSIRS
LZO0LENGZYS
FEOENSTES
LEONTNSEPS
LZOOLTAREYS
JEOEASTYS
LEO0LEASTYS

LZO00ZSLYS

QE00ITVarOA
BEADLZVERDA

PHOLTXELLH
sLINZYELIH
FLID0EYELLH
QOLOLIXLEOH
COLOLTWLTOH
0OLO0IYIEOH

OEDDS LYRUES
QE00G HYa9ES
BZLOLZY/IES
GEOONNTLOES
QEONETVOL08
QECHRVOLOS

HAAGINGD0Z
HPNSTNSO0Z

55501
5501
8501
£3501
E55 01
880
$55°0b
555 0L
5550k

MSZEYR
Ntk
n&zy're
E2YYe
nstrve
nezy e
B2eve
o5zyee
Qserve

kst o]

SrO S
i 23

XELLFR
£4L¥R
L)
RIZOGPE
FroRy]
Loy

G9E'PE
SOEYE
LR ¥E
LOEYE
oi0'vE
THIFE

8LLE8
eLLEs

TEETN NOIIVORTRSE RN

QuYMY TYEI0E4

™
TWIAIS

BILLSIESY [BOUTU [OF9 IROL
PUNY ASUCINT (AI0L

RN HOBIINN PHYS 210),
PUNDY PIE BUIPUN £ aouRsIsty vl Akdng
Buipling doumsissy wey Apldng
Buipun g shuRisesy weyy Addng
Weilini jEeMEaIY NOUIS JRUDREN
WeIfold ISRNENIE [OHSS jeusneN
WL Houn' IDOUTE IRUSHEN
welolg YR POYIT JRUSLEN
weiliold sagpolteD WSy
Wefold SNPeWLal YOS N
ISR USRANN PIYD
UOREINPY 0 Bnunsdar oS yBnosy ] -passed
wanyrondy jo wawpeded 5N
pung BgUdeuY

pung snueasy EEedS O]

PUNG HORRAORIS QOGEONP I MOl
UINOA, PUT UBIPHUD FEBRWOM-PUn JOIR Y ABuathieurd - dyY
HiesH RO -HISS Uy
j004og puckes -WESS My
poseg BOUARAS -H3TSE duY
YOGEIMDNNY BUUiesT HISEE - JHY
HESSH - gl
een eSO - HASST - VEUHD
UOHRIHe0ny BURNEST - HESST - VEHED
1 HISEE - VSHED

PURZ UBHEZUGRLS SONRINTS

WY S2UYD

uonewxg pur BSsualEAy KIS SAPRIS BN
uoneIcidxg DUE GIAUDIRMY 189IL]) SEPRID PPN

1RYSPD UOHRONPYE [BedE g Med YR HseL
Y - [Saig YT
ooy v I QY
teouRsdlg YR OY
gy - g Ued YIQT
BHES YFOH
gueg vIal
JejanD LOBEOND EoRds § Meg YR}

HION o)
Arsjuoweid - i #i1
Agjuwer -

LALET RN
W UB LB
VHed L
Ve Rl
VESI
pung anusAsy ferrads

PUr 21U BI0L
{2ivg) bt ittt 4 SouRisISY DIERHW
(TS WeiBol SoURISISSY PIETIPON
SRNAIGS LRWNL 'Y YHREM j0 Jedileds S
plng BIBURS

HOMOUML-SSVAMOINYED Tra 303



Ly jo ® o sal0u a8y
BERET e SEPEYBIZLS

R TEET

00'62Z ¥5e oezree

0BT L0T'E {op 092 L02'E}

OO LEF'FYS {00 26¥'busi

“E S EErale GEPES2LBE 0% 506768 TErEee ave) | T CLBORE . TEIRIREIS T SCeBSeeR e T65 208 L8]
vh2LLEE (L1262} {1 vzl ST 2P0 {Zyeit's)
05 0E) Toass) 09'0eL) 0Lv29
8 £A6'ZE st {Zrgie'n) TZOTEL LZOTIOIL0
19°E88's (e s {ooeee'sl £27509 £ZOTIOEIST LEOLAGHO
00°§6'S5F {bnelg'esy GUB26'E5p
U061 ESY 00’6665 GUBLE TSy CLMZALI0 ZZOLLOMLO
0¥ 92928 L 05'906'FE (6818 oosiny {o¥ 204842} QOB LLL 15484671
£8'L005 8848 {E6 7008 A TTOTIOEIS £ZOLAGNG
G0'859'259 fonesz'ssl £0'882'59 S LGP 26 1LTVEL LELTIOEIN MEGTADNG
Y518 05 306'FE 00-582'58 tirsigzadt 00994 SED 2812972 £TOTI0LB0 TIOTAUNLD
00°980'eE {ooaey'v2} kA TTOLBLIN LZOZAOLD
[ 42 {oo BiE'ez) -3 Jtad £2020E120 EZOLAOILD
SEGPY'6LE'TE 64 PEETLE (65°050'08F} {onzee pa} {seEEaZisol) o 408'2rLoL {r5'528'542}
o505 BES [ (v ea'LE] ZEOZ/GEID0 VEOZNOILD
£9'955'968 [ 4] {6t 9te'28) {58'068'068) Y ITPLS TLOTIALN TZUEN0ILD
oOMrEt tooorz'L) WorE'L 22026190 LZOTLLIAD
o0 BIL PSR tonezz vas BLEYSE L202ULHB0 LZOZILOIL0
0008E40T'E {08 092" 2026} 9409z eT'E TTOLOEIH0 L B0 07D
0 L6Y'IY {05 465 v¥) 00 L8y'yy TTOLOSIGT LEOUHO/L0
o 19y'EEh (00 2F'g54} 09 ar'esi
ot ¥90'v2Z ares'rLl 100652 FLLS} 00" vos'v2e} 0050808 EZOLI0EAT ZROTIWILD
of PEL'ERE 00°8EL'eHE 105902 58 ZTOLOULY LR
BGESP'ERE QO ESYERE {0 'es¥ ip2sh 00 ESYerE} BZOTARISE EZOLNGIT
066466 {ooos8's) 000eE's TLOTESD VZOTNDLD
20 66266 VBT WEBLE'E (o086 e 0L BLE'SE £20Z0080 Z2ozhin
00868261 01 01 +95'Rey {os L88'st) {90°892°006'¥) VEEELLYE Y
00°306'122 eI W0 V6L 48 zenzILIe0 LZOL0ND
00 506'44T 09082128 0970642 {oo'908" 2228} 0SS CEGEIIC TTOZHOILG
o0GETIEN'Y {nozeaated G0 EZEBEY ZTOTIOED0 12000
OO42YE50 D8 GER'EOMS [ {00 L2resyvs) D0268'558'C SEO20E/90 TZOTHOME
005 RRG 00-Ere'es) OOEFE'SS LTOHITE/D0 JEOLA0NL0
G0SEF'5398 05 CrE'95s DS LPERS (bo'sEreass) 05 16FTISE STOZI0E/S0 TEOLAOILD
SHITIORESRY TRYATTSS EEINVYS AT FTavAEDTY TRV TOH SHERTINESRY FERTITYR IS (TS GL Wods
TW10L AMYLEDONE e GENHYENN SLNODOY]  SYUVIAHOMG 0 ANvIISANG HEVYD AHUYD 3NNIATY GOWEd INVED
JALLYINANG €262 0 SNNT HONY 108 LNIWAYAEY CIINEYINA
O3 JSANGWLSHPGY bt

BNAT BONYTYE

PELBE LY
BLVEL'S

0C'GLE'ESY

00'058's
00869759
00054269
a0een've
coaLe'ee

05 S0F'RES
$4'955°868
o00KE'E
006ZL'YIR
GooBZ 202
DO LEY'EE

WreLWEE
10'954'CPE
00 £59'ERE
0066L8E
0066468

00°886°LL
10°306°LLE
ool
00 LEYBEYY
O SEY'EEE
00 SEYBI5E

CUYMY

LO-pE05-FER-56P-2L
$00-¥EOG-PEL-$EI-LL
LOO-PELS-PEG-SEITT
POU-PBO5FED GG TT

Sweiliold 0l J0 UCHEULIRISP J0f PATIRN 10U RUNGWE JTYsE-UD 5597

ZB0-09E£-040-0012T
£85-0828-010-004-ET

SO UTHEPECOEFET

SEECHOSPEDSEIED
9A0-DZ4 5P E0-GEY-2T
HE0-OELS-PEQ-g8Y-ET
GLEDTIG-rE0-00L-EE
BE5-0LLEPEO-D0L-EL

£O0G-EG09-PEO-GERIT
FOO-FEOS-PEOEEPET
LU PEOG-PRO-5EIEL
100 PEOSFEg-GEF-€2
Z00-bEag-FE0-58TEE
OO ¥E0S-FEN-SEPET
BLL-0LLG-PED- ST
BTL-QEISPEISEYEL
£LOTLG-PE0OOLET
Dfigval gyt v
PA-OZLE-PEO-FEY-LE
¥E0-0E LS BEN-56FEC

felaudlgig-ligd
RS-0 L S-PEC-EBI-EL
LSO LG FEO-SOP-ZT
ALT0ZIGFED-SEY-EL
BR00Z b5 PEQ-SG-3T
LrlogAR-g =gt gl

THIWAN oaroad
B4VLE HO INVHD

PRy #lBuIS 01 1@0lGng POURBISSY [B1AULY| ] BI0NS RNOL

VPR BT 150d Ty | HOUBGUQ
@ouRIRSH] AIQESIC Wik -BuoT Jyg ) JUequn
UBISURS ¥, HEHPA-HO

SOULINGY] ANDINLRYOTUOY L JIeUBG-L()

BONUISISEY (ORI B1EIS Riny,

Pt dsHEGU 101
{aleys spe) wedlold mepmaid ouns RusenN
(sr0ug FEag) WeIBhLY LoUNT OYSS JCURREN
(Rioug MG WeiBoky uour] woYIg IBUSHEN

pung espdisiuzy

puhg eaiA9 199G 1110},
i ndAy piy WAKIG WBD

PUR SRS (]

pung snUsAaN mIRads W30}
BUBIE UOGEINDH AluLD SoUD
Py uofe2npg RoUdSeL]
Bl USHEINPR j00UITAIY
spoap uabousy vos
SpRa WaBiaues VO

P SMdianY asdS

SpUn [RIGUSE) 130 ),

SUOSNGUINAD ARG [RI0F YL PESINAUERY
SUORNQIIUGD AMINGAG RIOS Yudl PRsIRLULSY
asurinsty Regesi s HBUR dvdl HeYeg-un
OIS JHAQID Y50 AV L HEBE
“omlad Ayd ] HEqRegy

BOURINGYE AOINQIHGO-USS gl HEUSGUO

PiY uoRuLIGEIS

Pry Agnb 3o SoUSUSIISYY

P ARUIRIOBANT

Py ARIUP P BX

Py voneyedsue: | pasolsien

piy uanepodsue: ) BskeBaes

RIS HAnG - iy NG L)
piy Aunseg esnobioes
piy Awmoag eonobsjarg

pry uogezenby eotofiazel

pry vepempnb 3 ponoBajey

Ay LUCTBSNRY BRedE eaoBees

Py USHBONRE feipady eouabaan
16150 2N - PIY HHS

SN [RISURE
uageangY (A JusLEdIg Mg

ST AVIDCTHHETRVIS SIS

(=]
<t

-



NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-5”
Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education, Keyport
School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board’s basic
financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from the
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with
the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in
Note 1 of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore,
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The District has
elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund
oh a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid
payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE &:

Borough of Keyport School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards

and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
$34,992.00 for the general fund and ($127,265.61) for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues
are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $47,085.04 $10,347,025.85 $10,394,120.89
Special Revenue Fund 1,998,619.48 772,420.08 2,771,039.56
Debt Service Fund 453,979.00 453,979.00
Food Service Fund 416,890.23 9,724.10 426,614.33

$2,462,604.75  $11,583,149.03 $14,045,753.78
GAAP Adjustments:
State Aid (30,973.00) (30,973.00)
Encumbrances 123,578.29 (331.68) 123,246.61

Total Awards and

Financial Assistance $2,586,183.04 $11,551,844.35 $14,138,027.39

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical benefits
and fong term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the state on
behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2023. TPAF Social Security
contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s
share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June
30, 2023.
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EXHIBIT “K-8”
Borough of Keyport School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(1) Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified
(2) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses? No
3) Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No
Federal Program(s)
) Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified? No

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)? Unmodified

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and listed in
Section [lf of this scheduie? No

(4) Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

Program Assistance Listing #
Education Stabilization Fund:
CRRSA —~ ESSER 84-425D
ARP - ESSER 84 425U
ARP — Emergency Homeless 84.425W
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Borough of Keyport School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section | - Summary of Auditor’'s Results {Continued

Federal Program(s)- continued

5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance?

State Program(s}

) Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are reqguired to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circutar 15-08 and listed in Section
Ili of this schedule?

4) Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
State Aid -Public Cluster:
Special Education Aid 495-034-5120-089
Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078
Security Aid 495-034-5120-084
Extraordinary Aid 100-034-5120-473

5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

&) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under N.J. OMB Circular 15-087
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Yes

No

No

Unmodified

No
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EXHIBIT "K-6"
Borough of Keyport School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

Internal Contro! Findings

None Reporied

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section HI - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported

151



EXHIBIT *K-7”

Borough of Keyport School District
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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